
1 
 

Zach Conine 
State Treasurer 

 

Members 
State Treasurer Zach Conine 

Lt. Governor Stavros Anthony 
Joe Caldera 
Andy Kao 

William H. Palmer III 
Mary Beth Sewald 

 
STATE OF NEVADA 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

 
PUBLIC MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

 
Wednesday, November 5, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 

 
Meeting via videoconference at the following physical location(s):  

Nevada State Capitol   Governor’s Office  
Old Assembly Chambers, 2nd Floor  Conference Room, 4th Floor 
101 North Carson Street  1 State of Nevada Way 
Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Virtually through Microsoft Teams, accessible here: 
Join the meeting now 
Meeting ID: 282 891 073 914 4  
Passcode: VZ6hb2YJ 
 

All items listed on this agenda are for discussion and action by the Board of Trustees unless otherwise 
noted. Action may consist of any of the following:  approve, deny, condition, hold, or table.   
 

Agenda Items 
 

1. Roll Call. 
 

2. Public Comment.   
Comments from the public are invited at this time. Pursuant to NRS 241.020(3)(d)(7), the 
Board intends to limit to 3 minutes the time for an individual to speak and reserves the right 
to impose other reasonable restrictions on place or manner for such comment. No restriction 
will be imposed based on viewpoint. Comment will only be received on matters relevant to 
the Board’s jurisdiction. The Board is not permitted to deliberate or take action on any items 
raised during the public comment period until the matter itself has been specifically included 
on an agenda as an item upon which action may be taken by the Board. 

 

Comments by the public may be emailed to nest@nevadatreasurer.gov by 9:00 p.m. the day 
before the scheduled meeting and include the commenter’s full name. Content may be 
redacted due to inappropriate language. All written public comments shall, in their entirety, 
be included as part of the public record. 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YWMxNTUwYjgtMTk1NC00MjJkLThiMTktYTUzYWY4ZjVkZDJk%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22e4a340e6-b89e-4e68-8eaa-1544d2703980%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22e2e1fa98-fcc1-4e50-a468-78775adf6baf%22%7d
mailto:nest@nevadatreasurer.gov


2 
 

 

3. For discussion and for possible action:  Board review and approval of the minutes of the Board 
of Trustees of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust meeting held on July 15, 2025. 
 

4. For discussion:  Nevada Employee Savings Trust program update.  Vestwell State Savings will 
provide a presentation on the NEST Program numbers post launch. 
 

5. For discussion:  Staff update on the Nevada Employee Savings Trust Program investment 
consultant.   

6. For discussion and for possible action:  Calendar year 2026 Nevada Employee Savings Trust 
Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule – January 2026 through July 2026. 

 
 

7. Public Comment.   
Comments from the public are invited at this time.  Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2)(d)(7), the Board 
intends to limit to 3 minutes the time for an individual to speak and may impose reasonable 
restrictions on place or manner for such comment. No restriction will be imposed based on 
viewpoint.  Comment will only be received on matters relevant to the Board’s jurisdiction.  The 
Board may discuss but is precluded from acting on items raised during Public Comment that are 
not on the agenda. 

 

8. ADJOURNMENT. 
 
Notes: 
Items may be taken out of order; items may be combined for consideration by the public body; and 
items may be pulled or removed from the agenda at any time.  
 
Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due 
process rights of an individual, the Board may refuse to consider public comment. See NRS 
233B.126. 
 
The Board of Trustees of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust is pleased to make reasonable 
accommodations for persons with physical disabilities. Please call (775) 684-7190 if assistance is 
needed. Please email nest@nevadatreasurer.gov or call (775) 684-7190 to obtain copies of 
supporting materials. 
 
THIS AGENDA HAS BEEN POSTED IN THE FOLLOWING PUBLIC LOCATIONS: 
 
• Capitol Building, 1st Floor, Carson City, Nevada  
•       Nevada Building, 1 State of Nevada Way, Las Vegas, Nevada   
 
Also online at: Nevada Treasurer and the Nevada Public Notice.  

mailto:nest@nevadatreasurer.gov
https://www.nevadatreasurer.gov/FinancialSecurity/emp-savings/meetings/
https://notice.nv.gov/


1 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

Agenda Item 3 
November 5, 2025 

Item: Approval of Minutes of the Board of Trustees of the 
Nevada Employee Savings Trust meeting held on 
July 15, 2025.

Summary:   
For approval, please see attached minutes from the Nevada 
Employee Savings Trust Board meeting held on July 15, 2025. 

Fiscal Impact: None by this action. 

Staff recommended motion: 
To accept and approve the Minutes of the Board of Trustees 
of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust meeting held on July 
15, 2025. 



1 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS 
TRUST (NEST) 

Minutes OF THE BOARD MEETING 
Tuesday July 15th, 2025, 11:00am 

Location: 
Via videoconference at the following locations and on Teams 

Old Assembly Chambers  Governor’s Office Conference Room 

Capitol Building Office of the Governor 

101 N. Carson Street, 2nd Floor 1 Nevada Way, 4th Floor 

Carson City, NV 89701 Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Board Members Present: 
Chairman Treasurer Zach Conine – Carson City 

Member Joe Caldera – Remote via Teams 

Member Andy Kao – Las Vegas 

Member William Palmer III – Carson City 

Member Mary Beth Sewald – Remote via Teams 

Others Present: 
Nicole Ting – Deputy Attorney General, State Attorney General’s Office – Carson City 

Lesley Mohlenkamp – Deputy Treasurer, State Treasurer’s Office – Carson City 

Hunter Railey – Colorado Secure Savings Program – Remote via Teams 

Courtney Eccles – Vestwell – Remote via Teams 

Michael Terdeman – Vestwell – Remote via Teams 

Andrea Feirstein – AKF Consulting – Remote via Teams 

Kay Cesarani –  Meketa Investment Group – Remote Via Teams 

Michael Pelham – State Treasurer’s Office – Remote via Teams 

Itzel Fausto – State Treasurer’s Office – Remote via Teams 

Veronica Kilgore - State Treasurer’s Office – Remote via Teams 

Kayla Slaughter – State Treasurer’s Office – Las Vegas  



 

2 
 

Travis Fosse – State Treasurer’s Office – Remote via Teams   

Reesa B. – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Jeff Mayhew – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Tray Abney – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Caitlin Shea – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Jessica Snyder-Contreras – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Grace Sullivan – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

Victoria Elizabeth-Schmidt – Member of the Public – Remote via Teams 

 
Treasurer Conine 
Good morning everyone and welcome to this meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 
Nevada Employee Savings Trust for Tuesday July 15th at 11:00am.  
We’ll start with Roll Call. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Treasurer Conine? 

Treasurer Conine 
Here. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Lieutenant Governor Anthony? 
Ok. Member Caldera? 

Member Caldera 
Here. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp  
Member Kao? 

Member Kao 
Here. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Member Palmer? 

Member Palmer 
Here. 



 

3 
 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Member Sewald 

Member Sewald 
Here. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Treasurer, we have a quorum. 

Treasurer Conine 
Wonderful! 
Good morning to everyone, to the high point of your day, let us go into Public Comment.  
Are there any members of the public would like to give comment here in Carson City? 
Seeing none are there any members of the public in Las Vegas who would like to give a 
public comment? 

Member Kao 
We are here alone. 

Treasurer Conine 
Alright, and are there any members online who would like to give public comment, 
members of the public? 
Hearing none, we'll move on to Agenda Item Number 3 for discussion and possible 
action Board Review and Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees Nevada 
Employee Savings Trust for both May 21st and May 28th. 
Do we have any questions or changes to either sets of Minutes? 
Hearing none, I'll take a motion to approve both sets of Minutes both May 21st and May 
28th. 

Member Caldera 
I’ll make a motion to approve both minutes. 

Treasurer Conine 
Alright, we have a motion, any discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, say aye. 

Member Sewald 
Aye. 

Member Kao 
Aye. 



 

4 
 

Member Palmer  
Aye. 

Member Calder 
Aye. 

Treasurer Conine 
Aye. 
Any opposed? 
Motion passes unanimously. 
Thank you very much. 
Moving on to item number 4 for discussion. 
The Nevada Employee Savings Trust Operations Update, a 30-day NEST launch 
progress report and a final Investment Policy Statement and Program Description 
Documents.  
Deputy Mohlenkamp. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Thank you, Lesley Mohlenkamp, Deputy Treasurer, Financial Literacy and Security 
Division for the record.  
So, I'm here today to provide a brief update on the progress of the Nevada Employee 
Savings Trust Program launch and I'll be giving a brief overview of the final required 
program documents that the Board approved at the prior meetings. 
Before I cover the items in your meeting packet today, I'll start off with a brief 30 day 
NEST Program Launch Progress report. 
So to review, the NEST Program opened its employer and employee portals and the 
NEST.nv.gov website on June 9th.  
A week later, on June 18th, the program sent out notification by e-mail and regular mail 
to approximately 14,000 employers, letting them know they were required to register 
with the NEST Program or claim exemption if they were already offering a tax favored 
retirement plan for their employees. 
During this time, the NEST Program also sent out a Press Release and followed up with 
local media to ensure the public had general knowledge of the program. 
Several Reno television stations and the NBC affiliate in Las Vegas ran news stories 
about the NEST program in the second-half of June.  
In addition to this, staff arranged to conduct several outreach presentations, both in 
person and virtual, to various business groups. 
In June, this included presentations and outreach to the Las Vegas and Henderson 
Chambers of Commerce, Carson City, Boulder City and Pahrump Valley Rotary clubs, 



 

5 
 

the Nevada Cannabis Association and the American Cancer Society. 
And in July, so far, we've only had a couple weeks in July, but we've had a few 
presentations as well to the business networking Group B&I, Big Little Sparks, the 
National Association of Women Business owners in Las Vegas, the Las Vegas Chamber 
of Commerce webinar that we just had this morning and we have presentations later 
this week with several Rotary clubs in Henderson and Reno, as well as presentations to 
the Fallon and White Pine Chambers of Commerce.  
And to top it all off, this week because we've had a very busy week, we also have our 
second direct communications going out by e-mail and by letters to all of the 14,000 
employers and that is going out today. 
Again, that's our second communication to the same group. 
And basically this communication is going to remind them about the NEST requirements 
and provide an access code for them to register.  
So, as of yesterday, which is our recent reporting, we have nearly 750 employers that 
have taken action so far. 
And I'm pleased to report to you that in less than a month, over 6,300 Nevadans have 
been enrolled into NEST, and now they have access to a retirement mechanism when 
they previously did not have that. 
So, as you can see, the outreach and communication side of the program has been 
very busy and is actually going to continue to be busy through July and August to help 
get the word out. 
We do have two more direct communications going out to our employers and this will 
happen the first week of August and the last week of August. 
So, that's in addition to the one that's going out this week.  
And we also have a second press release that will coincide with our e-mail in early 
August.  
And we also have some videos that we are producing now that highlight the ease of 
registration for both employers and Employees and these actually will be featuring real 
employers talking about their experience and you know, hopefully which of course, is in 
a positive way.  
We do feel like the process is simple and we wanted to make sure to highlight that. 
We expect to have these videos completed by early August as well. 
So, you're going to see a lot of activity happening early August as we continue forward 
and also with the help of our marketing partners, we have also conducted some 
analysis on the employer group and that's going to help us target these employers a 
little bit better as well. 
And so, for example, we found that contractors make up a large number of the employer 



 

6 
 

group, and so, we're going to be reaching out to Contractor Boards and Associations 
and groups related to contractors to help target this group specifically.  
We also are using the analysis to identify the larger employers that we have on our list 
and to ensure that we have one-on-one communications, if needed with them to help 
them more effectively register their employees, because obviously that's a Big Bang for 
our buck in that, if we have an employer that has a large amount of employees, that's 
gonna be very helpful for them to understand the process and will help them very 
directly. 
We have also found out that so far the majority of our employers that have registered, 
and again it's a very short period of time, but, most of these are using payroll providers, 
so we do have plans to do additional outreach to payroll provider groups as well to 
make sure that they can, you know, advocate on behalf of the program. 
We'd also like to remind the board that we are always looking for event opportunities. 
So, if you do have any business groups or associations you would like us to attend, 
please feel free to reach out to, to staff and we can add these to the schedule.  
We're very happy to add those to the to the schedule. 
So, we think this is a really great start to get Nevadans ready for retirement, but we do 
expect even more registrations to occur in July, the later part of July, and especially 
towards the end of August. 
Historically, we have found with our partner Vestwell, they have informed us that 
historically employers have a tendency to respond towards the end of the registration 
period, which for Nevada is September 1st; so, we expect that there will be a fairly large 
wave that will hit, of registrations that that'll happen at the end of August. 
So with that, I would like to pause for a moment before I move on to the other part of the 
presentation here to answer any questions you may have about our efforts. 

Treasurer Conine 
Thank you Deputy. 
I’ll turn it over to Member Palmer. 

Member Palmer 
To add to your list, I did a presentation at B&I Millionaires Group in Reno where I’m a 
leader there. 

Treasurer Conine 
Fantastic. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Thank you so much. 



 

7 
 

Member Caldera 
This is Joe Caldera. 
I wanted to find out, where are we? 
Have we posted that the registration period ends in September on the NEST website? 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
Yes, actually, right as you enter into the enrollment area, it does list the registration 
period with the September date. 

Member Caldera 
Ok, because, I think the public well prior to registering though is there, I think we made it 
maybe move it also in some form of notification or part of the summary, because I think 
there’s some confusion as to July 1st and then we have September 1st.  
So, if we can consider that, that would be helpful.  

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
Absolutely, we will make sure to put a little bit greater emphasis on that September 
close of the registration period.  

Member Caldera 
Thank you. 

Treasurer Conine 
Any additional questions from Members? 
Please, Member Sewald. 

Member Sewald 
Yes, thank you Treasurer Conine. 
Not a question, more of a comment. 
Thank you Deputy Treasurer and Treasurer Conine. 
Lesley mentioned our webinar this morning, it was great! 
You guys did a great job and I’ve gotten a lot of great feedback from Chamber Members 
thanking us for trying to get the word out because it’s, people are overwhelmed and 
they can feel like it’s complicated; so, you guys have been excellent partners and I just 
want you to know what it means to the Chamber and our Members across the state. 

Treasurer Conine 
It is absolutely our pleasure to have partners as great as you are. 
And I’d like to welcome, we have some visitors to the meeting, we have members of the 



 

8 
 

public. 
This is generally a meeting where we don’t have members of the public, where are you 
all from? 

Member of the Pubic 
Wisconsin…Milwaukee. 

Treasurer Conine 
Wisconsin, Milwaukee! Alright, so we have some Wisconsinites in the house! 
Might I suggest you spend all of your money while you’re here?  
Alright, any additional questions from Members on Agenda Item 4A? 
Alright, hearing none, let’s move on to Agenda Item Number 4B, Final Investment Policy 
Statement and Program Description Documents. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Thank you, Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
For the second part of our staff update we have provided in your packet several of the 
final required program documents for the NEST program. 
And so, we're going to start off with the Investment Policy Statement.  
The motion that was made at the May 21st board meeting was to accept the Investment 
Policy Statement with changes discussed at the meeting and also give staff leeway to 
make any other additional technical or clarifying changes to make the document more 
effective without changing its substance greatly. 
A longer motion, but that's what it was. 
So, in a nutshell, we were to receive input from the Board and finalize the document. 
So, we coordinated individually with Board Members on any additional changes and we 
have provided the final document and the redline version as an informational item here 
today. 
So, you have record of the changes that were made, and the document in its final form. 
On page 54 of the PDF version of your packet, we tried to put bookmarks in there to 
make it easier to navigate through the PDF version of this; but on page 54 of the PDF 
version of your packet, you will find the Final Investment Policy Statement that includes 
the changes that were made.  
But, on page 69 of the PDF version of your packet, you will see that we've also included 
the redline version so that you could reference the changes that were made. 
To note, the majority of the changes can be found on the Investment Policy Statement 
on page 3, in Section 1. 
There's also on page 4 of the document in Section 5, Roles and Responsibilities, there 
are several changes in that section as well. 



 

9 
 

And then on pages 10 and 11 of the document, Section 9, which is titled, 
‘Recommending Investment Changes to Partner Program,’ you can see that there were 
also several changes in those sections. 
I just wanted to call out those sections because those are the three sections in particular 
that have the majority of the changes.  
There were a few other changes in the document as well, including some in the 
Appendix, you know, that had definition changes on page 14 of the document as well. 
So, I just wanted to call out what those the majority of the changes were. 
And with that, I am going to pause for just a moment to answer any questions you may 
have that are specific to the Final Investment Policy Statement before I move on to the 
other document. 
 
Member Palmer 
Hi, this is Member Palmer. 
I’m one of the people that have been suggesting changes and one of them I think 
there’s a small bit of miscommunication. 
On any document where Vestwell or BNY already have the language I’d like to see the 
IPS, rather than us write it, use their documentation and just put a cliff note into our 
wording saying, reference whatever documents they're using that way if there's any time 
done at the federal level, we don't have to go back in and rewrite ours for things like 
account closures, RMDs, those type of documentations where it doesn't make sense for 
us to write them and just to pass them on to Vestwell. 
And I have notes here on it; but, I hope that's as clear and concise as I can make that. 

Treasurer Conine 
Thank you Member Palmer. 
Go ahead. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
I do, I would kind of defer at this point in the time just to probably confirm whether or not 
that is something we would pursue as finalizing the document or the other alternative is 
this document, you know, is a living, breathing document; so, it could also be updated in 
future updates as well. 
So, I think at this point, I probably would just look for the guidance on that. 
I’m sure if I need that from the AGs (Attorney General’s) Office, or… 

Treasurer Conine 
So, Deputy, I’m sorry, just to confirm, what you’re suggesting if I’m understanding 



 

10 
 

correctly is moving forward with the document with language to explore member 
Palmer's changes and make sure that's, basically, incorporate them in the way to do it, I 
don’t think those would end up being a mechanical problem, but… 

Member Palmer 
Right. Like in our current documents, since we now offer traditional IRAs due to MAGI 
(Modified Adjusted Gross Income), we don't have like account closures, RMD 
disclosures put into our document because it really wasn't needed at the time and rather 
than write them, it's already in the account opening documents when they signed and 
opened them just in our documents reference for these types of actions where we 
already have documentations reference them to the Vestwell, BNY, whatever program 
we’re using rather than us write them. 

Treasurer Conine  
That makes sense to me, conceptually. 

Member Caldera  
This is Member Caldera. 
Member Palmer, I think right now at hand, we’re just talking about the Investment Policy 
Statements. 
So, I agree with you that there are some changes into the new account that we I also 
have worked with this with the committee or with Lesley and her team.  
But I think at the moment we're just looking at the Investment Policy Statement, is that 
correct Lesley? 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Yes. 

Treasurer Conine 
And the Program Description documents I believe. 

Member Palmer 
Both 

Member Caldera 
Oh, we’re looking at both? 

Treasurer Conine 
I mean, the item is both. 
We can, we talked about the Investment Policy Statements, yeah. 



 

11 
 

Member Caldera  
Member Caldera. 
So, I think we need to focus on one item, the Investment Policy Statement. 
I’m glad those updates were made from some of the changes that we had talked about. 
I'm prepared to go ahead and move forward with the Investment Policy Statement, but I 
agree with Member Palmer that there should be some consideration for the language of 
the new account. 

Treasurer Conine  
Ok. 
I think we have agreement there. 
Member Caldera, thank you for the clarifying language. 
Deputy Attorney General Ting, did you want to add anything to that? 

Deputy Attorney General Ting  
Thank you so much, Treasurer, and thank you for the question. 
I don’t have a preference or recommendation…Board’s discretion on how they want to 
move forward on that. 

Treasurer Conine 
Ok. Do we have any additional questions on the Program Description Document side of 
the puzzle, if there aren’t any on the Investment Policy Statement Guide? 
Ok. 
So, then I would accept a motion. 
Well, I guess we don’t have to actually do anything on this item, but, let’s give some 
direction to staff to continue working on future amendments to make sure that the 
document lives and refers to things appropriately. 

Member Palmer 
Yeah.  
Sounds good. 

Treasurer Conine 
Everyone copacetic with that? 
Alright, great. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Yes, and Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
I did want to just clarify. 
My introduction originally to Member Caldera's point was specific to the Investment 



 

12 
 

Policy Statement, you know, so the motion that that I covered there was related to the 
Investment Policy Statement. 
I did want to just give a quick little overview on the Program Description just to clarify, 
sort of where staff went from there. 
At the last Board Meeting on May 28th, the Board made a motion to have staff be able 
to make changes as advised by the Attorney General's Office, specifically related to the 
Beneficiary Section as it related to Community Property. 
So, what we've included in the packet today is a reflection of the work that we did with 
the AGs (Attorney General’s) Office to review the document and very specifically for that 
section.  
And so, what you'll see is in the packet on Page 85 of your Meeting Materials, you're 
going to see the pro…the Final Program Description Document with all the changes. 
But on page 109 of the Meeting Materials, you're going to see the redline version, and 
this only contains the edits that the AG's (Attorney General’s) Office had. 
And again, the thought behind that was that at the prior Board Meeting on May 28th, the 
motion had been to approve it with the changes that had been made and that we were 
only going to be making that additional adjustment with the AGs (Attorney General’s) 
Office to the Beneficiary Section. 
So, I just wanted to make sure to clarify that because this document does only contain 
that one page on page one change on page 10 in the red line document. 
And you know, again that was for reference to show what that final change was. 
So, certainly you know, that concludes essentially what I was going to report back to the 
board, but I'm happy to answer any additional questions or take any additional direction. 

Treasurer Conine 
Roger that. 
Ok, we’ll take one more period for questions if anyone has them there, otherwise, I think 
we’ve got a good plan moving forward. 

Member Palmer  
I’ll make a motion to proceed, if one’s needed, if not, I’m good. 

Treasurer Conine 
I think we’re ok, because it’s a discussion item, but thank you and I think staff has a 
good plan for where to go from here. 
Let’s move on to Agenda Item Number 5 for discussion and for possible action, Board 
discussion and approval of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust, Traditional IRA 
Custodial Agreement. 



 

13 
 

Lesley Mohlenkamp 
Ok, thank you again, Lesley Mohlenkamp, Deputy Treasurer, Financial Literacy and 
Security Division for the record. 
As part of Agenda Item Number 5, staff has provided the Board with the Nevada 
Employee Savings Trust, Traditional IRA Custodial Account Agreement Document for 
approval.  
This document is the last of the standard, what we're calling Fine Print Documents for 
the Program. 
And it is given to an Account Holder upon being enrolled in the Program and electing to 
contribute to a Traditional IRA. 
We worked with the board to see if there were any initial changes and kind of navigated 
through that process over the last week or so, again, we worked individually just to see 
if we could, you know, collect any, you know, changes to that and what you see before 
you is the final document. 
At this time, I'm happy to answer any questions you may have about the document, and 
then we also have representatives from Vestwell on the line as well, if we have any 
technical questions. 
 
Treasurer Conine 
Thank you so much. 
Please Member, go ahead. 

Member Caldera 
Member Caldera here. 
I know that Vestwell is utilizing the IRS Codes revised as of April 2017, which obviously 
states some old language. 
It pains me to see that it’s not updated on the website at the IRS. 
Does Vestwell have any insight as to, because it could create some confusion when 
folks read this IRA Custodial Agreement, especially some outdated information, can 
Vestwell speak to that point? 

Courtney Eccles 
Hello. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Les…Oh, there she is. 



 

14 
 

Courtney Eccles 
Hi, Lesley. 
Go ahead, Lesley. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
I was just about to say, I think Courtney is on the line from Vestwell, so, I’ll hand it over 
to you. 

Courney Eccles 
Sure, happy to, Courtney Eccles from Vestwell. 
Hello everyone.  
So, Member Caldera, it’s a great question and I think unfortunately this is just one of the 
areas in which BNY is the custodian for these state programs, NEST included, all the 
states we work with. 
It is just policy that they will update those portions of their Custodial Document if and 
when the IRS releases an updated version and so, until that time, it is not something 
that they’re going to change in the Custodial Document. 
To your point though, we do try to ensure that information on the website around you 
know contributions limits, things like that are up to date and we do reference checking 
out the specific IRS websites. 
But it's just not something that is in that is within our ability to change, and unfortunately 
I don't have any insight on when the IRS might make those changes, but you know, we 
can certainly check with BNY. 

Member Caldera  
Ok. 
Well, thank you for that, and just for the record, I just wanna let people know that BNY 
did do a supplement to this agreement as of tax year 2025.  
So, for those just wanting to learn more, you’ll find that in the following pages. 
So, thank you. 

Treasurer Conine 
Thank you Member. 
Any additional questions or comments on the Nevada Employee Savings Trust 
Traditional IRA Custodial Agreement? 
Seeing none I will take a motion to approve the Nevada Employee Savings Trust 
Traditional IRA Custodial Agreement. 

Member Palmer 
Member Palmer here, I’ll make the motion. 



 

15 
 

Treasurer Conine 
We have a motion. 
Any discussion on the motion? 
Hearing none, all in favor, say aye. 
Aye. 

Member Palmer 
Aye. 

Member Caldera 
Aye. 

Member Kao  
Aye. 

Treasurer Conine 
Motion passes unanimously. 
We'll move on to Agenda Item Number 6 for discussion and possible action. 
Board to direct the State Treasurer staff to submit report of the Activities, Operations 
and Projected Activities of the Board for the current calendar year. 
Miss Mohlenkamp. 

Deputy Mohlenkamp 
Lesley Mohlenkamp for the record. 
We are gonna have our Program Manager, Michael Pelham, do a brief introduction to 
this, and then we're both happy to answer any questions. 

Michael Pelham 
Thank you Deputy Mohlenkamp. 
Michael Pelham for the record, Program Manager for the NEST Program. 
As outlined in the Cover Memo, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 353D.240: 

On or before August 1st of each of each year, the Board of Trustees of the 
Nevada Employee Savings Trust shall prepare an Annual Report detailing the 
Financials, Operations and Activities of the Nevada Employee Savings Trust 
Program and the Trust during the immediately preceding calendar year, as well 
as any projected activities of the program for the current calendar year. 
The report must be delivered to the director of the Legislative Council Bureau, 
the Governor and the Controller. 



 

16 
 

If approved today, a copy of the draft memo which is included in the packet will be 
transmitted to the Interim Director of the Legislative Council Bureau, the Governor and 
the Controller. I'm happy to answer any questions about that report. 

Treasurer Conine 
Thank you Michael, any comments or questions from Members of the Board on this 
report, which I would like to congratulate you, you are going to be one of about 6 people 
who will read this report, but hope springs eternal. 
Any comments or questions? 

Member Kao 
This is Andy Kao for the record. 
I have a question about the memo requirement of detailing financials. 
I see the memo for Operations and Activities, but not financials. 

Michael Pelham 
Thank you, Michael Pelham for the record. 
It's a great question and we would like to note that as part of the requirements for NRS 
353D.240, effective July 1st, 2025, a full audit of the books and accounts of the Board 
Program and Trust will also be required. 
So, the effective date for the financials is actually starting on July 1st. 
So, we won't have any financials to report until the end of this year, the end of the 
calendar year. 

Treasurer Conine 
Thank you. 
Member Kao, any follow up questions? 

Member Kao 
I do not, thank you. 

Treasurer Conine 
Ok perfect, if there are no other questions, we’ll take a motion to approve and transmit 
this report. 

Member Caldera 
I’ll make the motion. 

Treasurer Conine 
We have a motion. 
Do we have any discussion on the motion? 



 

17 
 

Treasurer Conine 
All in favor say, aye. 

Member Sewald 
Aye. 

Member Caldera 
Aye. 

Member Palmer 
Aye. 

Treasurer Conine 

Aye. 

Member Kao 
Aye. 

Treasurer Conine 
Motion passes unanimously. 
Thank you very much. 
We’ll close Agenda Item Number 6. 
Move on to Number 7, our second period for Public Comment. 
Member Kao, has anyone come into the room in Las Vegas? 

Member Kao 
We are still waiting. 

Treasurer Conine 
Alright, well, hope springs eternal. 
Any new members online? 
And, would anyone like to give public comment here in Carson City? 
Seeing none, we’ll close our second period for Public Comment and move on to 
adjournment. 
We are adjourned. 
Thank you all very much Members and Staff. 



THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

 
 

Agenda Item 4 
November 5, 2025 

 
 

Item: Nevada Employee Savings Trust operations 
update.  Vestwell State Savings will provide a 
presentation on the NEST numbers post launch. 

 
 
Summary:  
 

Michael Pelham, NEST Program Director, will provide a Nevada 
Employee Savings Trust operations update.  Courtney Eccles of 
Vestwell State Savings will provide a presentation on the NEST 
numbers post launch. 
 

 
Fiscal Impact: None by this action. 
 
Staff recommended motion: 
No action needed.   
 
 



NEST Total Assets in the first 4 months compared to other state facilitated 
auto-IRA programs 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Total Funded Accounts by Program for the first four months 
 

 



PROPRIETARY & CONFIDENTIAL TO VESTWELL HOLDINGS /  FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

1

Nevada Employee 
Savings Trust (NEST) 
Program Updates

November 2025



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

2

NEST Program Schedule
Launch Schedule

• Program open notice - June 18th
• 1st registration notice - July 15th
• 2nd registration notice - August 5th
• 3rd registration notice - August 26th

Registration window closes September 1st
• 1st post-reg notice - September 10th
• 2nd post-reg notice - October 1st

Employer Data
• Created records and sent notices  to approximately 14K 

employers
• Created records for approximately 4.3K employers  that were 

“pre-exempted” based on 5500 filings 



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

33

As of 
07/31/2025

As of 
08/31/2025

As of 
9/30/2025

As of 
10/31/2025

Total 
Employers 14,098 14,187 14,355 14,445

Registered 
Employers 531 1,788 2,409 2,624

Exempt 
Employers 1,034 2,131 3,092 3,417

Submitting 
Payroll 24 192 572 1,223

● Strong ER activity in August/September/October 

● Focus on closing the gap between registered ERs and number 
submitting payroll through Nov/Dec

Employer 
Updates
Current Numbers



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

44

Employee 
Updates
Current Numbers

Significant activity in August, 
September, and particularly 
October with employers running 
payroll.

Saver growth expected to 
continue through Nov/Dec as 
more registered employers 
begin making contributions.

As of 
07/31/2025

As of 
08/31/2025

As of 
09/30/2025

As of 
10/31/2025

Funded 
Accounts 57 1,492 4,579 11,378

Total Saver 
Assets $8.7K $192.7K $740.7K $2.3M

Average Acct. 
Balance $152 $129 $162 $199

Average 
Contribution 
Rate

4.77% 4.92% 4.98% 4.99%

Average 
Monthly 
Contribution 
Amount

$149 $122 $125 $139



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

5

Employer Engagement 
Focus on Payroll:
• Continuing twice -monthly payroll webinars for employers (have seen 

strong engagement from NEST employers)
• Nov/Dec schedule - weekly payroll webinar opportunity(except 

holidays)

Automated Reminders:
• Direct outreach to employers with QBO/Gusto for integration 

opportunities (as well as other targeted integration emails)
• Reminders to complete registration, begin making payroll 

contributions, and notices of missed payroll contribution dates
• Add employee reminders (in 2026) to employers that have not added 

any new EEs after a period of time



FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY

6

Additional Program Updates

Data Warehouse and Reporting Dashboard
● Continued enhancements to reporting dashboard, ensuring the 

reports and information is useful for program monitoring and 
reporting.

Client Services Enhancements
● Released an automated exemption agent for Employers and 

automated opt -out agent for Savers (works in Eng. & Spanish) 
● Employer live chat services are available in portal (when an logged 

in), Saver live chat coming soon



7

Thank You
About Vestwell Holdings Inc.

This presentation does not constitute an offer to sell, a solicitation of an offer to buy, or a recommendation of any securit y 
or any other product or service by Vestwell Holdings Inc. or any of its subsidiaries, affiliates, or other third party. Neith er 
Vestwell nor any of its subsidiaries or affiliates make any representations regarding the appropriateness or suitability of 
any securities, products, or services discussed on our website and we do not provide legal, tax, financial, or investment 
advice to any individual. Vestwell's wholly owned subsidiary, Vestwell State Savings, LLC, is a service provider to certain 
state savings programs. Any information on our website or in any reports or presentations is provided for general 
education purposes only. Certain content may also be confidential and proprietary. Any link from this presentation to a 
third party website, including any link to a website of any state savings program, is not an endorsement or 
recommendation of such program or of investment in such program, nor is it a statement or opinion as to the accuracy or 
completeness of any information provided on such third -party website. All investments involve risk, including the loss of 
principal, market fluctuations, liquidity and interest rate risks, domestic and international risks, and inflation -related risks
among others. Individual investors are solely responsible for determining whether any investment, investment strategy, 
security or related transaction is appropriate for them based on their personal investment objectives, financial 
circumstances and risk tolerance. Individuals should consult their business advisor, attorney, or tax and accounting advisor 
regarding their specific business, legal or tax situation, and should review the offering document or other disclosure 
provided by any applicable program or issuer of any security before deciding whether to make an investment.



1 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

 
Agenda Item 5 

November 5, 2025 
 

 
Item: Staff update on the Nevada Employee Savings Trust 

Program investment consultant. 
 
Summary: 
Discussion on the selection of an Investment Consultant for the 
Nevada Employee Savings Trust program. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None by this action. 
 
Staff recommended motion: 
Discussion item only. 
 
 



1 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 

 
Agenda Item 6 

November 5, 2025 
 

 
Item: Calendar year 2025 Nevada Employee Savings Trust 

Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule - January 2026 
through July 2026. 

 
Summary: 
Please see attached the proposed meeting dates from January 2026 
through July 2026. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None by this action. 
 
Staff recommended motion: 
To accept and approve the proposed Nevada Employee 
Savings Trust Board Meeting Dates for Calendar Year 2026, 
January through July. 
 
 



1 
 

Zach Conine 
State Treasurer 

 

Members 
State Treasurer Zach Conine 

Lt. Governor Stavros Anthony 
Joe Caldera 
Andy Kao 

William H. Palmer III 
Mary Beth Sewald 

 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  

NEVADA EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST 
 

 
AGENCY ITEM 

DEADLINE 

 
AGENDA 

POSTING DATE 

 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
 

MEETING 
TIME 

January 7, 2026 January 14, 2026 January 21, 2026 10:00 a.m. 

April 1, 2026 April 8, 2026 April 15, 2026 10:00 a.m. 

July 1, 2026 July 8, 2026 July 15, 2026 10:00 a.m. 

 

 

Carson City Location: State Capitol, Old Assembly Chambers, 2nd Floor, 101 N. Carson Street 

Las Vegas Location: Governor’s Conference Room, 4th Floor, 1 State of Nevada Way 

Partner Instructions: Please provide one summary statement and all supporting documentation that  
you wish to be considered by the board members to at nest@nevadatreasurer.gov,  

no later than the agency deadline listed above. 
 

101 N. Carson Street, Suite 4 
Carson City, Nevada 89701  

775-684-5600 
Website: nv-emp-savings-trust (nevadatreasurer.gov) 

 

mailto:nest@nevadatreasurer.gov
https://www.nevadatreasurer.gov/FinancialSecurity/emp-savings/nv-emp-savings-trust/

	4 month comparison.pdf
	NEST Total Assets in the first 4 months compared to other state facilitated auto-IRA programs
	Total Funded Accounts by Program for the first four months

	11-05-25_NEST_Meeting Materials Packet _ FINAL (Updated Courtney Slides - 11.4.2025).pdf
	11-05-25_NEST_Meeting Materials Packet _ FINAL.pdf
	11-05-25_NEST_Meeting Agenda FINAL.pdf
	PUBLIC MEETING
	AGENDA
	MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
	Agenda Items

	Combined _ Cover & NEST Board Meeting Minutes (11a, July 15, 2025) _ Agenda 3 for November 5 Board Meeting.pdf
	Cover Minutes 8-5-25.pdf
	NEST Board Meeting Minutes (11a, Tue, July 15, 2025) - DRAFT.pdf

	Agenda Item #4.pdf
	Cover. Agenda Item #4 Vestwell Employee Experience.pdf


	_NEST Program_November 2025 Board Slides (updated by Courtney _ 11.4.25).pdf
	Nevada Employee Savings Trust (NEST) Program Updates

November 2025
	NEST Program Schedule
	Employer Updates
Current Numbers


	Employee Updates
Current Numbers

Significant activity in August, September, and particularly October with employers running payroll.
Saver growth expected to continue through Nov/Dec as more registered employers begin making contributions.

	Employer Engagement 
	Additional Program Updates
	Slide Number 7

	11-05-25_NEST_Meeting Materials Packet _ FINAL
	cover memo - Agenda Item # Investment Consultant.pdf
	Agenda Item #6.pdf
	cover memo - Agenda Item #6 Board meeting schedule.pdf
	NEST Board Meeting Schedule _ 2026 _ January - July (To be voted on in Nov 5 Board Meeting).pdf




